
 Pre-Bid Meeting held on 24 May, 2017

S.No RFQ Clause No. Page No. Content of RFQ requiring Clarificaiton Clarification / Suggestion / Changes sought RFP Ammended/Clarification

1
RFP Page no- 26- 

Clause 21.1

It is mentioned that water supply/municipal 

engineer is required. Whereas in the terms of 

refenrence page 54 clause 7.6.1 requirement of 

municipal finance specialist is shown. Kindly 

confirm whether the key expert required is water 

supply/municipal engineer or municipal finance 

specialist.

Key expert Municipal engineer required 

along with Municipal Finance specialist for 

team composition however municipal finance 

specialist will not required for evaluation of 

technical proposal.

2
RFP Page no- 54- 

Clause 7.6.1

kindly confirm whether one team can be 

proposed for all the 61 AMRUT cities or 

different teams are to proposed for different cities

Separte teams to be depute for different cities 

once the contract will be awareded for each 

city . However for technical proposal only 

one team will considered for eveluation.

3 General
kindly clarify the project area of the city if a city 

comes under both AMRUT and SMART CITY

Project area will be municipal limit of 

respective city.

4 General
It is requested to kindly cofirm the project area of 

61 Cities

Project area will be municipal limit of 

respective city.

5

Section 7: Terms 

of Refernence 

Point (iv) Page 

no- 52

Prepare Current Water balance as per 

international water association (IWA) 

methodololgy

in this regard kindly clarify whether the water 

meters used for the analysis of losses in the DMA 

are to be purchased by the consultant or shall be 

provided by the Employer.

Yes Water Meters for analysis has to be 

purchased by the consultant.

6 General

It is requested to kindly provide the details or 

elevated storage reservoirs coming under the 

study area and the population served by 

individual reservoirs.

 Refer Service Level Benchmark data from 

Directorate local body (DLB Website), 

AMRUT SLIP from RCUES Website and 

information from respective ULBs websites.

Project Name: Selection of Consulting Services for Assessment of  Non-Revenue Water and Developing Strategy and Implementation Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 

reduction of Non-Revenue Water in Select Smart Cities

RFP No. RFP No. : CBUD/AMRUT/61/ Uttar Pradesh

Submitted by : WAPCOS
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Project Name: Selection of Consulting Services for Assessment of  Non-Revenue Water and Developing Strategy and Implementation Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 
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7 General

In order to submit a compreshensive proposal in 

accordance with the RFP and the information 

provided in minutes of Pre-Bid meeting, it is 

requested to extend the last date of submission of 

the proposal by one week from the date of 

existing deadline submission of proposal.

No Change
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Project Name: Selection of Consulting Services for Assessment of  Non-Revenue Water and Developing Strategy and Implementation Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 

reduction of Non-Revenue Water in Select Smart Cities

RFP No. RFP No. : CBUD/AMRUT/61/ Uttar Pradesh

1 General

We would like to inform you that RFP for  

"Selection of Consulting Services for 

Assessment of Non-Revenue Water and 

Developing Strategy and Implementation 

Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 

reduction of Non-Revenue Water in Select 

Smart City of AGRA"   was floated and we 

DRA Consultant Limited, Nagpur, were the 

successful bidder for Agra NRW project. 

We have already prepared the Draft 

agreement for the project.

 

Similarly RFP for Lucknow was also 

floated and evaluation / result is awaiting.

 

Please take a note of above and requesting 

to exclude the 2 mentioned cities (Agra & 

Lucknow) from the  RFP for 61 cities.

1. Agra  & 39 Lucknow  & 61 Varanasi (RFP 

Floated) to be excluded from the RFP   

Submitted By: DRA Consultant
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Project Name: Selection of Consulting Services for Assessment of  Non-Revenue Water and Developing Strategy and Implementation Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 

reduction of Non-Revenue Water in Select Smart Cities

RFP No. RFP No. : CBUD/AMRUT/61/ Uttar Pradesh

1 General
Please furnish the Payment Schedule of the 

Consultants.

Mentioned in  Special Conditions of 

Contract 41.2 Clause

2

Page no.51 of 

RfP Section 7, 

Clause 7.2 - 

Scope of Work

Please confirm

1. Whether 5% of the sample to be conducted for 

one sample DMA or for all DMAs?

 

2. Whether the DMAs were established already in 

the Distribution system or the Consultant has to 

form the DMA? Without the details of the 

distribution system (reservoirs, distribution 

system layout, location of valves, topographical 

survey of the project area, dsystem length, dia, 

material etc.,) estimating the cost for forming the 

DMAs is not possible also time given to complete 

the project is grossly insufficient)

 

3. Whether formation of one DMA is sufficient, 

in which NRW assessment will be made and the 

results will be extrapolated for the remaining 

DMA ?

OR several DMAs has to be formed to       cover 

all the HSCs to make a realistic NRW 

assessment?

 

4. Consumer meters to be procured or available at 

consumer end.

1. 5% Sample for all DMA

2. DMA is already stablished however 

further needs to be crosscheck Concern 

ULB/Jal nigam

3. DMAs has to be formed to  cover all the 

HSCs to make a realistic NRW assessment.

4. Consumer meters to be procured by 

consultant.

Submitted by: Shah Tecnhical consultant Pvt. Ltd.
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3

Page no.55 of 

RfP Section 

7.6.1, Core Team

NRW 

Management / 

Leak Detection 

Specialist – 

Graduate in Civil 

Engineering

Please consider to accept Graduates in Electrical / 

Mechanical Engineering also for NRW 

Management / Leak Detection Specialist

No Change

4 General

With reference to the size and complexity of the 

Project, we request you to kindly extend the 

Project duration to minimum 12 months

No Change
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Project Name: Selection of Consulting Services for Assessment of  Non-Revenue Water and Developing Strategy and Implementation Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 

reduction of Non-Revenue Water in Select Smart Cities

RFP No. RFP No. : CBUD/AMRUT/61/ Uttar Pradesh

5 General

Kindly provide the following details for all 61 

Towns

 

· Area of the town in sq.km and total length of 

roads in km

· Whether topographic surveys of the towns are 

readily available?

· Total nof of HSCs - Zone wise

· Layout of the Distribution system, showing 

levels, reservoir locations, pumping stations

· No.of Service Reservoirs

· No. of Pumping Stations and pumpsets details 

for which energy audit has to be conducted.

· Details of Source and WTP

· Supply duration per day

· Whether the HSCs are metered ? If yes % of 

metering with respect to the total HSCs.

· How the tariff is collected (volumetric by using 

meters or flat rate)

· Average pressure maintained in the system.

· Pattern of supply (no of hours of supply and no 

of days of supply in a week)

 Refer Service Level Benchmark data from 

Directorate local body (DLB Website), 

AMRUT SLIP from RCUES Website and 

information from respective ULBs 

websites.
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1

Page No. 54

7.6 Expertise

and Inputs 

The contract period will be 04 months.

4 months will be a very less time to

execute multiple cities. Hence we request

to increase it with logical no. of person

months.

No Change

2

Page 24

E) Data Sheet :

14.1.2 

Estimated input of Key Experts’ time

input: 20 person months

(This number may vary from city to

city depending upon the volume of

work)

We request to mention the person

months specifically estimated for

individual cities or group of cities.

No Change

3

Page 24

E) Data Sheet :

14.1.2 

Estimated input of Key Experts’ time

input: 20 person months

(This number may vary from city to

city depending upon the volume of

work)

Subsequent to the above query, following

details are required for the cities to

understand quantum of the work.

1. GIS data including pipe line network

2. Total no. of WTPs

3. Total No. of ESRs/GSRs

4. Details of installed flow meters

5. Total area in sqkm

6. Population

 Refer Service Level Benchmark data from 

Directorate local body (DLB Website), 

AMRUT SLIP from RCUES Website and 

information from respective ULBs 

websites.

4

Page No. 26

21.1 (iii) : Key

Experts’

qualifications

and

competence for

the Assignment

&

Page No. 54, 55

7.6.1 Core

Team 

Water Supply / Municipal Engineer 

Municipal Finance Specialist

Under the Marking System in Data Sheet,

Key Expert is mentioned as 'Water Supply

/ Municipal Engineer', whereas the

'Municipal Finance Specialist' is asked

under Core Team. We request clarity on

how many Key Personnel and their CVs

are expected.

Key expert Municipal engineer required 

along with Municipal Finance especialist is 

required for team composition however 

municipal finance specialist will not 

required for evaluate of technical 

proposal.

Submitted By: ADCC Infocad Limited
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5

Page No. 51

Section 7:-

Terms of

Reference :

7.2

The sample selection and sample size

will be finalized in consultation with

the SPV but in any case sample size

shall not be less than 5% of the

proposed DMA or supply zone.

We request to provide details about

number of metered and unmetered

connections including GIS based

consumer data, if any, and consumer

billing data at locations under

consideration.

 5% Sample for all DMA  & 

DMA is already stablished however 

further needs to be crosscheck Concern 

ULB/Jal nigam
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Project Name: Selection of Consulting Services for Assessment of  Non-Revenue Water and Developing Strategy and Implementation Action Plan for Reduction Plan for 

reduction of Non-Revenue Water in Select Smart Cities

RFP No. RFP No. : CBUD/AMRUT/61/ Uttar Pradesh

1
E Data Sheet 

17.7 & 9 Clause
25

The Proposals must be submitted no later 

than:

Date:  03/06/2017

Time: 15:00 Hours 

No Change

54 Team Leader Team Leader

55 NRW Management / Leak Detection Specialist 
NRW Management / Leak Detection 

Specialist 

55 Municipal Finance Specialist

Municipal Finance Specialist (CV not to be 

evaluated)

Municipal Engineer Specialist, 

Mininum Qualification-  Graduate in Civil 

Engineering with Post Graduation in PHE 

/ Environment Engineering or equivalent.

Experience- • 5 Years’ professional 

experience.

•  Project Manager / Team leader of large 

water supply and/ or waste water projects

• Design and restructuring of water supply 

/ distribution network projects

• Experience in Operation & Maintenance 

of Urban Water Supply schemes. 

Others

2

Saction 7 TOR, 

7.6.1 Clause, 

Coreteam
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3

III. Special 

Conditions of 

Contract 41.2 

clause

The payment will be city linked. The

Contract Price will be averaged out for

each city by dividing the total contract

price by the number of cities under this

assignment.

 Not Applicable
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